
• 

-

• 

202 . 
COMMERCE AND IAOOR CO.MMITI'EE 

March 6, 1975 

The meeting was called to order in Room #213 at 6:38 on Thursday, March 6, 1975. 

Senator C-,ene Echols was in the chair. 

PRESENT: Senator ('-,ene Echols, 
Senator Warren t-bnroe 
Senator Gary Sheerin 
Senator Richard Bryan 
Senator Margie FCX>te 

Please see Exhibit "A" for list of others present. 

ABSENT: Senator Richard Blakerrore 
Senator William Raggio 

S.B. 161: Restricts public utility to one apPlication at a time t•~fore public 
service ccmnission of Nevada on particular subject natter. Fiscal Note: 
No. (BDR 58-398). 

This bill will be cx::mtinued at a later date in order to wait for a report from the , 
F..nergy SUbcommittee. 

S.B. 192: Establishes procedure and licensing_requirerraits f0r hone improverrent 
salesman. Fiscal Note: No. (BDR 54-404). 

Joe Brandom, representing the Southern Nevada Hone Builders Association, testified 
in favor of S.B. 192. Mr. Brandom said this bill ·was created out of dire necessity 
to clean up by law the best we can; he feels the bill is thorough and to the rx:>int 
and should be enacted as law. He didn't feel he should have to be part of a double 
standard. He feels that a lot of people have been ripped off and said he could have 
testirrony to prove it. (Exhibit B). In las Vegas there are -bx) types of hone im­
provem:mt areas that he is concerned arout and they are construction renodeling and 
the aluminum products people. He went over his exhibits with the com:nittee. He 
said he has been in business ten years a'l1.d has gone t.hrough 42 salesman, none of 
which has lasted over eight rronths. He said he isn't hard to WJrk for, but he de­
rrands that everything be done right and wants to keep his reputation up. He said 
there is a dire need for this bill and :rrost of the bill came from the State of 
California. They enacted the bill about a year ago, and one of t.heir lenders out 
of the Bay Area told him to watch out for people out of California. Mr. Brandom 
had Mr. Thomas check the records for the last year and it has increased four fold. 
He said at the fall board rreeting he Sp:)ke with the Senator Milton Marks of tl:ie 9th 
Senatorial District and asked him hCM the bill was doing. Senator Marks said it 
had helped a great deal but it needed strengthening. This is the m::xlel they v.Drked 
from in preparing the bill. He said there were two reasons he was i..'l'lterested in 
seeing the bill passed. 1) !-le is proud of his record and is an honest businessman 
and wants to remain so. 2) If the industry is cleaned up, legitimate people will 
have :rrore business because they are ncM losing business to the people who are 
making the chaos. Senator M::>nroe said there are legitimate people involved ii1 
this kind of stuff that are good people that come into our state to do this. Ile 
also asked Mr. Brandom who he represented out of the state. Mr. Brandom said 
he represented the Southern Nevada Horne Builders Association. Senator tbnroe 
asked if he was familiar with people out of the state that cone into the state 

dmayabb
Senate

twilt
Line

twilt
Line



March 6, 1975

• 

-

• 

Page Tv.o 

Z03 
to do this work. Mr. Brandam said they get familiar with them ~en t.1-iey come. in• 
senator Monroe asked if there were legiti.rrate people that come mto the state~ 
do this \\Ork. Mr. Brandam said he was sure there were. Senator rvbnroe asked if 
it \\'.Ould present difficulty with them to present a license from out of state. Mr• 
Brandam no, not once they are scrutinized and ·we find they are of good rroral char­
acter involved in the industry. He said they are not interested in whet.11er t.1-iey 
guy &:-inks too much or beats his wife. He said t.1-iey have to be inve~tigated be-
fore they get a- license and if they have good recamrendations they will get one. 
Senator Monroe said in rural Nevada they depend on people from Utah and Idaho to 
do a lot of this business, such as aluminum siding. Mr. Brandofa asked if there 
were licensed in the State of Nevada, and said if they weren't, they should be. 
Senator Monroe didn't know, but he thought that all tl-iat was required was a business 
license from the town he was working in. Mr. Brandau said that as a legiti.rrate 
businessman, he had two licenses. He also said t.11at t.1-iey used to have a lender in 
the Bay Area that they could call and get info:r:nation about a person. Senator Monroe 
asked what board will do the licensing. Mr. Brandam,said t..1-ie state Board of Contractori: 
He said they \\'.Ould have in increase their staff a little arid the fees that would be 
established later by the roard would have to be set up. Mr. Brandam said he thought 
there were about 35 to 40 rem::rleling people in J..JC"1.S Vegas. Senator Echols asked if 
these were finns and Mr. Brandom said yes. He said there were about two or three 
sales man per carrpany. Senator Bryan said it was his understanding in talking to 
Mr. Brand.am before the meeting that Mr. Brand.am was prepared to delete repair of 
rrobile homes from the home improvement definition. Mr. Brandom said he ·was pre­
pared to make that statement. Mr. Said Cervetti, mo was there with him, was repres­
enting another facet of the business, primarily in siding,patio covers, etc. He 
said .Mr. Cervetti does \\Ork with rrobile homes and he would be willing to drop it. 
Senator Bryan said that rrobile hones were included in the definition of hone im­
provements in Section3, page 1, and that it was his understanding that Mr. Brandau 
would willingly take it out. Senator Echols said he did not understand the rationale 
for ti.11is. Senator Bryan and Mr. Brandom said they are already regulated. Senator 
Bryan said they are regulated by a board 0H1er t.1-ian the contractors and they have 
another piece of legislation which seeks to irrprove their own regulating standards. 
Mr. Brandau said as long as this board regulates properly, they have no objection 
to it. Senator Echols asked if the reference to rrobile home woulcl. be deleted 
throughout the bill and Mr. Brandam said that was right. Senator I11bnroe said he saw 
no provision in the bill that prescribes what kind of surveilance or investigation 
or qualifications a person would have to meet. Mr. Brandom said it \\'aS a little 
ambiguous at this point, but sone points were that any act a salesman does that 
contributes a fraud, whether it be a misderreanor, gross misderreanor, or felony, that 
could be held against him. Getting people to sign contracts t.1-iat are not corrpletely 
filled out would be another thing. Senator tbnroe said he was talking about the 
original qualifications, surveilance, or investigation. Mr. Brandom said he did 
sone research on that and the Department of !--btor Ve.hicles has a similar thing. 
He said they could also get documents through Sacrarrento from Senator Marks about 
how they are doing it. He said they could arrive at that and said that was subse­
quent to the law. Senator 1-bnroe said he W"Juld like to know who was going to set 
up the regulations and W"Juld like sone input into the bill on this. Mr. Brandau 
said this would be done through the State Contractors Board. Senator Monroe said 
there was nothing in the bill t..11at gives them the authority to set up specifica­
tions. 1'11.r. Brandom said that was ta.~en care of in the new bill, S .B. 192. Senator 
M)nroe said he didn't see it in the bill. Senator Echols said it seerred like a lack 
of comrrunication because Section 7 on page 2 said they had to rra.ke application to 
the roard. Senator Monroe said there was still no qualifications they would have 
to meet. Senator Bryan said this bill was an airendm:mt to the Contractors Licensir1g 
Chapter, 624, which gives the roard the power to pass regulations pursuant to tl-ie 
provisions. Mr. Brandom said they would prefer to police their industry, in as 
much as they would be invited to set up the regulations. M.r. Brandom said part 
of the standards that will be set up will be out of this ccm:nittee that will be 

dmayabb
CL

twilt
Line



March 6, 1975

• 

-

• 

Page Three 
204 

formed of reputable builders. Senator Sheerin asked what corrmittee he was referring to. Mr. Brandom said this would be a comnittee set up of those in the industry. 
Senator Sheerin asked if this bill provided for that comnittee. M.r. Brandom said no, at this p::,int it is not worked up • 

Joe Lawler, Deputy Ccmnissioner, Consurrer Affairs Division, testified next. He said the Division recognozes the need for this bill, mainly in the p::,int emphasized by Senator Bryan, the protection of the rrobile hone a-vner. He said they were S!)eak.ing of the personal property and whe.n you add things to it, like awnings, etc., they w:::>uld like to see the protection afforded to rrobile home owners. He said Mr. Quinan had a bill in the hoppers and this v.Duld satisfy that need. .M.r. Lawler said the Division w::>uld support .Mr. Quinan's bill. Senator Sheerin asked w.:iat this had to do wit...11 this bill. Mr. Lawler said because rrobile homes are rrentioned and there is a need for nobile home owners to be recognized. Senator Sheerin asked if the bill were amended to exclude nobile homes out was Mr. Lawler in favor of the bill. Mr. Lawler said he "W()Uld rather not comnent on that. Senator M:mroe said he should have some interest as a member of the consumer affairs division. Mr. Lawler said they had nany people earning over the back fence from neighboring states and ripping off nain­ly nobile home owners. Senator Ii.bnroe asked if it were true that these people also victimize home owners and Mr. Lawler said yes and he could site cases. He said he merely wanted the rrobile home owner to be considered. Mr. Lawler said that if .Mr. Quinan' s bill w:::>uld take care of this provision, then he was not in favor of some of these girnmick items. Senator Echols asked Senator Bryan -where he got the infonn­ation to renove this from the bill. Senator Bryan said it was his understanding that there is a seperate bill being processed and that this is being taken out of the bill recause it confuses regulating authority. The are talking about the State Contractors Board in bill and the State Contractors Board has nothing to do with nobile homes. He said he had talked to Mr. Brandom and he is not opposed. Senator Echols said 
he had a problem with this situation because the differences are so small. The improvem::mts could be dcme to a rrobile home as well as a starilard home. Senator Foote said they are divided because they are different sections of t..11e law. 
You have to get them in the laws where they would be nore applicable. 

Dan Quinan, State Fire Marshall, testified next. He said at the end of the 1973 session a rrobile home law was devised, NRS 489. In that law they looked at certain problems in the nobile home area that needed attention. The power was given to the Departm:mt of Cormerce, State Fire Marshall, to take care of these problems. They -set up regulations to handle the so-called rip-off artists that prey on the rmbile 
hoioo owners. This opened the door to these people tl-iat did this kind of work. There are 350 people in the State of Nevada who wish to be licensed. Realizing they had a problem in nagni tude, they set up three seminars: one in Las Vegas, one in Carson City, and one in Elko. They attempted to train these people in how they were going to be treated. The idea was that they would license and the corrmission w::>uld have the power to revoke or suspend such license under certain conditions. Once the pro­
gtam was started, they collected $34,000 in fees. Arout the time they were ready to st..art the program, it was challenged that the law did not give them this right. They received an opinion from the attorney general that you did not have tollave a license to do any work on a nobile home. This session they have attempted to do this and amend the law so there is' no question that they do have this right. This is A.B. 27 When the attorney general gave this opinion, Mr. Quinan went to Mr. Stoker and said there was a need to take care of this problem. He was granted a hearing before· the State Contractors Board and their attorney stated they would like to do this but nobile homes are personal property and their statutes are geared toward real property. If A.B. 27 is pc3.ssed, they will be able to take.care 'of at lease the rrobile home area . Senator Monroe asked if they gave the $34,000 back, and Mr. Quinan said yes. Senator Sheerin asked if they take rrobile horres out of the bill, is there a need for this bill. Mr. Quinan said the bill addresses itself to saleSIOOn and this is an area 
-where they have no control. They go after the nan that does general horre repair. 

dmayabb
CL



March 6, 1975

-

-

• 

Page Farr 
205 

He said they have factory representatives that cOI'IE ;in from out of state. Thi$ 
\\Ould cause a problem in licensing. He · feels that one agency shouls have control. 
Senator Sheerin said his question was if rrobile homes are rerroved from the bill, 
is there a need for the bill. Mr. Quinan said his opinion is that if it addresses 
itself directly to the salesrran ·then the consurter has a problem. Senator Bryan said 
to forget about :rrobile hOI'!Es and rrobile hOI'!E salesman, and aside from that, did he 
see any problem with the bill. Mr. Quinan said no, with the rerroval of the word 
nobile hOire, he has no objection to the bill at all. 

Mike Melner, Director of the Depart:Irent of Corrmerce, Consurter Affairs Division, 
spoke from the audience. He said the Fire Marshall's office handles complaints 
about rrobile hanes. Any corrplaints about real property are forwarded to the State 
Contractors Board. It v.0uld be difficult for the Division to take a stand on the 
bill as they don't handle the real property conplaints. 

Mr. Al Chap:ran, .r.bbile Home and RV Association, testified next. He ma.inly wanted 
to cover the part of the bill about repairs. They have factory service teams to do 
repairs and this v.0uld cause problems in licensing these teams. He said he would 
not like to see "repairing of rrobile Hanes" included in the bill. He also said if 
you rerrove rrobile hanes, he would caution that in Section 3 it says residential 
property and this would put them right back in again. Mr. Brandom spoke from 
t.he audience and said you could put in single family dwellings or multi-family 
dwellings and eleminate Mr. Chap:ran's problem. 

Mr. Dick Bast, Deputy, Mobile Hare Section of tl-ie Fire Marshall's office testified 
next. The ma.jor problem with the bill, he felt, was Section 5. By definition of 
Section 5, any improvement automatically puts the improvem:mt under the licensing 
of this chapter, which is the contractor's chapter. He said if they put in ''duly 
licensed by the State of Nevada" their bill could go through. 

Sandy Shunway, Home Builders Association in Reno, testified in opposition to the 
bill. They opposed the bill because they feel that licensing anyone who has dealing 
with the general public, and is classified as a salesman, would put undue stress on 
their already stressed businesses. They have contacted the Better Business Bureau 
and the Reno Police Depart:rrent. They don't have the problems that exist in Las Vegas 
because they Better Business Bureau has set up a screening process of all door-to-door 
salesman tl-iat go through their area. They take these salesma.n and have them appear 
before the Better Business Bureau and listen to their sales pitches. The salesman 
are then sent to the Reno City Police Depart:Irent which investigates them thoroughly 
and then issues a license to go door-to-door. The Better Business Bureau has a 
oonsumer awareness program that appears in the newspaper constantly. Mrs. Shunway 
also called the Reno, Carson City, and Washoe County Building Depart:rrents. None of 
· them have any trouble with door-to-door sale5m=n or hOI'!E improverrent sale5m=n. She 
said the problems in Las Vegas could be solved the same way. She also spoke to Mr. 
Bob Stoker on the State Board of Contractors. 

Robert Stoker, Secretary of State Contractors Board, testified next. He read a 
letter which he sent to the Board's attorney, Thomas Cook, and to all the board 
n:embers. A copy of the letter is attached. The board is opposed to S.B. 192. , 
The board is nm on its cw.n resources from the funds collected from fees for licensing 
arid applications. The additional expense of hiring rrore ma.n power to police this 
would be intolerable burden. He said they are already cutting down on staff to 
stay within their budget. He said that while his is out looking for an unlicensed 
salesma.n, he should acrually be looking for the contractor who will do the v.0rk • 
Last year the lx>ard processed 120 criminal conplaints and 1200 to 1300 informal 
conplaints. A very small part of these 1300 corrplaints \<lere against home irrprove­
rrent salesman. fust were against large developers. . 

dmayabb
CL



March 6, 1975

-

-

• 

•• w 

206 

Senator B.ryan asked Mr. Stoker if he saw any need for any kind of legislation in 
these areas. Senator Bryan said according to the infonnation .Mr. Brandom gave tpe 
ccmni ttee, there was a need in Clark County. He asked Mr. Stoker what he w:mld 
suggest be done to correct the problem. Mr. Stoker said his investigators would 
just have to ¼Ork harder. Senator Bryan asked if under this bill wouldn't any 
salesrran have to be licensed. Mr. Stoker said yes. He also said if the matter 
were handled in Las Vegas like it \vas in Reno { the problem would be taken care of. 
Senator Sheerin asked who in the North was dolllg this and Mr. Stoker said the Reno 
Police DE:::!parl:lrent. Senator Bryan asked if he was satisfied, after talking to their 
california counterparts, that their bill is not working. Mr. Stoker said they have 
over 100,000 contractors over there and are presently 70,000 hearings behand. Senator 
Bryan said his question was whether the law was doing any good in California. Mr. 
Stoker said no, he didn't think so. Senator Echols asked Mr. Stoker if there v;ras 
an office of the State Contractors Board here. Mr. Stoker said it was in Reno. 
Senator Echols asked if he was full tirre and Mr. Stoker said yes. Senator Echols 
asked where their office was located and Mr. Stoker said 328 South Wells in Reno. 
It was also determined that Mr. Stoker is the treasurer-administrator, that there 
are 16 employees, their attorney is Thomas Cook, and the board is required to rreet 
by law every quarter and as often as Mr. Stoker sees fit. This is on an average 
of every six weeks. They alternate between Reno and Las Vegas. 

Thorra.s Cook, Attorney for the State Contractor's Board, testified next. He is 
locatec: at 421 Court Street, Reno. He has been retained by the board since 1958, 
and he also has a private practice. The board is opJ:X>sed to this legislation for 
the reasons Mr. Stoker stated. In addition, if they try to administer this act, 
it will certainly arise. He sees a trernendous increase to the regulations if they 
try to fit this bill into the present stab.ltes. He said there may be a need for 
same age.ncy to administer this, but says it isn't the state Contractors Board. The 
people on the Board are all contractors and having them regulate salesrren would be 
ta.1-:ing them out of their area of expertise. Section 8 of S.B. 192 requires that 
a photograph be on the license. .~lr. Cook says that you \,.-ould then have to put photo­
graphs on all the rest of the licenses or it would be sorre kirrl of discrimination. 
Section 8 also says the board can deternrine if the applicant if of good rroral 
character. He says the terminology is vague, maybe even constitutionally vague. 
The penalty is $500 maximum for a first aoffense and then up to $1000 for trie next 
of ;Eense. This is rrore than the penalty in the stab.ltes they have been ¼Orking 
under~ He said this law just doesn't fit, and he could see all kinds of admin­
istrative problems and legal problems. He said they weren't the agency to handle 
it. Senator Sheerin asked who he thought was. Mr. Cook said maybe the Better 
Business Bureau and the Police Depart:rrent. He said if it works in Reno, maybe 
it would work in Las Vegas. He said ma.ybe handling it on a local level ¼Ould be 
better than a state level. Senator Echols said the Better Business Bureau is 
a private agency, and their authority could be challenged. Senator Echols asked 
him if he had any ideas on that. Mr. Cook said he had not considered that 
possiblity. Senator Foote said that the Better Business Bureau mainly helped 
through Public Service Announcerrents. 

Pete Kelley, Nevada Retailers Association, testified next. They are opp::,sed to this 
bill unless it is amended. They feel it is another regulation on legitimate business. 
He said if there is a need for further legislation why not extend the definition of 
what is contracting and continue to regulate the business entity, which in rum 
could regulate the salesrran. The Retailers feel there s..1--iould be clarification of 
heme foprovernent salesman. He suggested an arrendrrent on Page 1, Line 23, after the 
word contracts, they would suggest adding "on a door-to:aoor basis as defined by 
NRS 598.180." They also have considerable objection to Section 9 on Page 2, 
because it is very impractical for large corporations to be licensed when they 
are sitting back in sorre corporate office as a salesman. On Page 2, after Line 35, 
to add t

1knowingly11 which ¼Ould make it consistent with other bills we have been 

dmayabb
CL



March 6, 1975

• 

-

• 

Page Six 

207 
discussing in this area. The bill has a fiscal note of no, but it would seem to them that this would create huge problems for whoever is going to enforce this. 

S.B. 201: Provides for creation of industrial developrrent corporations. Fiscal Note: No. (BDR 55-764). 

Fran Breen, Nevada Bankers Association, testified neither in favor nor opposition to the bill. He said several sections of tl-ie bill seem to be contradictory. He said investments of banks are controlled 100 percent by the federal government. Section 32 says a bank may purchase for its awn account the shares and ot.11.er se­curities of a state develop:nent col'.}X)ration organized under the provisions of sections 2 to 31. Then Section 13 says a financial institution which does not become a n:ember of the corporation shall not acquire any shares of t."1e capital stock of the corporation. A member is defined in the act as any financial in­sti tution triat lends noney. Under section 32 a bank may purchase shares, but under Section 13 t.l:ley may not acquire any. Senator Bryan asked if that could be corrected by saying "subject to the provisions of subsection.'' Mr. Breen said he was sure that it could be. Senator Echols said this act was directed onl:r at national banks. Mr. Breen said under the regulations he has the term banks in­cludes national ba.nl'-...s, federal banks, etc., which are Irelfbers of the Federal Reserve System. Every bank in Nevada, according to the Banking Act, is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Co_rix)ration. Mike .Melner, Department of CorrJ!terce, spoke from the audience and said that some of the banks are not :rre:rru:,ers of the Federal Reserve. .Mr. Melner said t11is applies only to banks chartered under the State Banking Statutes, not tJ1e federally chartered banks. ~tr. Breen said if that is true then you may be creating an. unfair situation where state banks oould in­vest and national banks could not. One of the main purposes of the banking act was to equalize the corrpetitive basis of national and state banks. Another proble.m is in Section 15 where it says each member of the corporation may make loans to the corporation as and when called ½?Qn by the corporation to do so, subject to the following conditions, and it limits a lot of conditions. Then in SEction 16 it says that a member is not obligated to ma.lee any loans to t.11e ool'.}X)ration pursuant to calls made subsequent to notice of tl-ie intended withdrawal of that nanber. Section 16 strongly implies that they are not obligated to make loans and Section 15 says they may make loans. He said the Bankers Association has not taken a stand on this bill because of these questions. 

Paul Means, Industrial Developrrent Director, City of North Las Vegas, asked if they oould call upon the Bankers Association to do some redrafting. Mr. Breen said they could. 

Mike Melner, State Corrrrerce Director, Consl.:IITBr Affairs Division, testified next. He pointed out that State Department of Comrerce licenses the state banks, some of which are not members of the Federal Reserve System; licenses savings and loans and all insurance companies doing business in the State of Nevada. There is no requirem:mt in this bill that any of those organizations have to join and no re­guirerrent that any of the national banks have to join this. The Department is very much in favor of the bill, and the only direct contact they would have with it is that the Superintendent of Banks v-X)uld examine any corporation that is fonred under this statute. He said the bill provides for creation and it might be better to say it provides authorization for creation because nobody has to join. At this t:iJre he introduced Mr. Robert Garrett, acting District .Manager of the Small Business Administration and Mr. Charles Blackledge, Assistant Director of Finance and In­vestments for the Small Business Administration in San Francisco and he represents the Regional Director of the small Business Administration. Se..riator B:ryan asked Mr. Melner if he would be willing to v-X)rk wi tl-i Mr. Breen arrl the Nevada Bankers Association on sorre amendments to satisfy their questions. Mr. Melner said he v-X)uld do that, but didn't think any corrections needed to be made. He thought 

dmayabb
CL



-

-

• 

Page Seven 208 

that if Mr. Breen tCXJk some time to sit down a11d talk arout it, his questions would 
be answered. 

Mr. Garrett and Mr. Blackledge ca:rre forward at this tine to testify. They handed 
out exhibits, one of which is the Springmeyer Report and tl-ie other being their 
official staterrent. Mr. Garrett said there have been nurrerous occasions when they 
hav~ been unable to rreet the needs of the sma.11 businessman in the state. Part of 
the reasons are the lack of direct funds to the age.ncy and the pressing demands on 
the banks. He said this is an institution that could serve statewide as no other 
institution has that capibility. Mr. ('-,arrett then said that Mr. Blackledge would 
be better able to answer questions. 

Senator Bryan said that he w:::mld like to have a brief view of what the bill IDuld 
do that is not being presently done for snall businessmen under the law. 

Mr. Blackledge said this was a state wide bill and would be a vehicle to help 
rrarshall the state's assistance and spreading its resources across the state. 
It helps to spread the risk on some areas that we might need in some part..s of 
the state and bring funds into some parts of tl).e state that might not be generating 
thernsel ves in this area. He said this IDuld loan noney where it is needed, not 
where the noney comes in. Senator Monroe asked if this would open up the gates 
to some of these industrial park dec:-,ls like we had in North Las Vegas. Mr. Black­
ledge said no unless the banks want to invest i.n it. He said to rerrember this 
is a private corporation. Senator 1-bnroe asked why the state has to be in sup!)Ort 
of this act. Mr. Blackledge said there were no state funds i.rivolved. He said it 
was possible to borrow on roughly a rmtching fund basis for this privately owned 
state developrent conpany to borrow TIDney from the Snnll Bussiness Administration, 
to supplement that which they borrow from their own membe..rs. Senator Echols asked 
if private citizens may become members. Mr. Black.ledge said no, but they could 
be stockholders. There are two classes, stockholders and memr..>ers. Senator Echols 
asked if there would be expertise available to corre in and put the first one to­
gether. Mr. Blackledge said he was sure help IDuld be available. He said he 
thought it would start as a banker's comnittee with $50,000 a year overhead. 

Paul Means, City of North Las Vegas, Industrial Developrrent Director, testified 
next. He is very much in favor of this bill because it does spread risk. He said 
anything that IDuld help the banks pool their resources and share the risk wuld 
greatly help industrial developrrent in the state. 

S.B. 192: Establishes procedure and licensing requirerrents for horre improverrent 
salesma.n. Fiscal Note: No. {BDR 54-404}. 

Senator .Monroe TIDtioned to kill the bill. 
Senator Foote seconded the notion. 
Senators Sheerin, Monroe, Echols, and Foote voted yes. Senator Bryan did not vote. 

Senator !Jbnroe TIDtioned that BDR 52-231, BDR 8-228, and BDR 52-234 be introduced 
as conmi ttee bills. 
Second by Senator Bryan. 
Unaninous with Senators Sheerin, M.:>nroe, Echols, Foote, Bryan voting. Senators 
Blakemore and Raggio absent. 

There being no further business, the rreeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m • 

dmayabb
CL

dmayabb
Typewritten Text
March 6, 1975



-- ----Su - -
SENATE CC>lnl<\rt< • J Lo. 'P• r COMMITTEE fY\~ 209 

, . . ROOM f ~L\ 3 h. · L ~ } r 
I DAY Tu.un ~~ DATE , v\'-''K. n '4 f Cc./~ 1_-.----t-· . ----------·--·------------------·· '.: . 

. '1 . 

. NA.t.m _: ___ ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER 

I . 
; 

322- ,n, 
·73¢--lfl/ 

' 

O'f NL-\\l o.. 3 ~9 ... L/t, I/ 

~~ . . _ . -:J?ol. ~""-tJJJ-17~~ 
l---·-----,-4--~~-_-.,_s_ Gdk~Z-?&:. Ct,_4/_fJ.t:,liit-> P • - ,I~ 

. et:>£ £~d;llt ~o~~H~-~Al'~ ___ ZH,i. r;P?r~.a~ 

1------;· lEAtJl-_ __ &ILlct+tJ..S. - tLf.j __ 12_E. Al~r+-"" I.A-'- v,,A--~ 8¢9-7J, 

\\ ~6;r- E. c::2/4",-/ .£.1) C'TI-J•HLJ'fi~ M-~4 . 
,i 7 . 

;I N \\(~ "-AE:t..NEI<.,. C:..o_~M~~c:..-- -~-~,-: C.c g..&_S-L.fc).Sc 

f-------+\ ~~(;-~_e-r 0_ili_~Re11: __ SBA __ L,~-~~-~-- · 3-?S--~:z.? _ 
i . . . 

Ii·. -~/'~_.$_~_.A s~-~--t ~{_,,~s.s,-~'l~L_ 



210 
STATE OF NEVADA 

MIKE O'CALLAGHAN 
GOVERNOR 

STATE CONTRACT.RS BOARD ROBERT G. PARK, CH.-.IRMAN 

M. D. H"NCOCK. TREASURER 

.. MEMBERS ROBERT L. STOKER, SECRETARY 

THOM.-.S A. COOKE, BO .. RD "TTORNEY ~.-.YNE T. OONNELS, RENO 

M. O. HANCOCK, RENO 

ALBERT B. SOLARI, RENO 

LUTHER P, KUTCHEr.t. LAS VEGAS 

R. L. MENOCNHALL, LAS Vt.GAS 

ROBERT 0, PAHK, LAS VEGAS 

JOHN J. HOSf:'.. LAS VEGAS 

-

• 

P. 0. BOX 7497, RENO, NEVADA 89502 
1760 INDUSTRIAL ROAD, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89102 

Mr. Joe Brandom, Owner 
Brandom Construct.ion Company 
1706 Santa Paula Drive 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89105 

Dear Mr. Brandom: 

December 17, 1974 

Re: Unlicensed Contractors 

As per your request for information regarding unlicensed contractors, this 
office has compiled an abbreviated listing of offenses that have occurred 
during 1974. 

The names of the principals involved have been withheld but are available 
upon request. The attached list shows the date the complaint was filed, the 
reason for the complaint, and if available, the amount of monetary loss 
involved. 

If there are any further questions regarding this matter, please contact this 
office immediately. 

CMT:kfg 

~~-
C-· Charles M. Thomas 

Manager 
Las Vegas Office 

Encl: Unlicensed Contractor Listing 



• 

-

CASE FILED 

12/7 /73 

11/7 /73 

11/15/73 

1/23/74 

1/23/74 

2/14/74 

11/4/71 

9/11/73 

4/3/74 

4/12/74 

4/13/73 

3/6/73 

9/24/74 

• 9/24/74 

December 17, 1974 

PROJECT TOTAL SUM AMOUNT PAID 

erect wood fence 158.00 158.00 

erect wood fence 400.00 

erect block wall 1,375.00 

install water con- 412.19· 
ditioner 

install water con- 412.19 
ditioner 

install a sprinkling 390.00 
system and a planter 
box 

build 4-plex 47,600. 

block wall, addition 2,200.00 
to existing home 

block wall 1,066.25 

room addition includ- 3,295.00 
ing fireplace and air 
conditioning 

paint exterior of 750.00 
home 

install carpet and 2,782.65 
vinyl floor covering 

build closet 

install double 
windows in dining 
room 

disputed 
160.00 

200.00 

1,375.00 

412.19 

412.19 

390.00 

5,000, 

not stated 

not stated 

1,748.50 

648.00 

2,700.00 

125.00 

21:1 

COMPLAINT 

complainant stated that 
no work was performed 

set a few posts and never 
returned 

only dug shallow trench 

failed to perform 

failed to perform 

did not complete sprinkler 
system and did not do 
planter box at all 

no work performed 

workmanship substandard, 
removed from job by owner 

poor workmanship 

approx. 6 months after 
start of contr. the project 
was still not complete 

oversprayed when painting, 
painted part of the roof 

.. 

not installed properly 
(Note: total listed is for 
the entire project, the cost 
for the vinyl and carpet was 
1,738.55) 

contractor continually made 
excuses not to start the job, 
complainant removed him from 
the job, and the contractor. 
retained monies for his time 
in preparing for the job~ 

poor workmanship, removed 
some electrical wiring causin 
several outlets and fixture t 

·not work 



_,. Page 2 
{ 

DATE FILED • 6/14/74 

5/3/74 

3/6/74 

2/1/73 

8/26/74 

5/10/74 

-

• 

PROJECT 

remodel carport 
into room 

repair roof 

painted interior 
trim of house 

TOTAL SUH AMOUNT PAID 

1,000.00 750.00 

400.00 500.00 

150.00 150.00 

lay concrete patio 350.00 350.00' 

paint the outside of not stated not stated 
house 

erect block wall 405.75 205.75 

212 

COMPLAINT 

very poor workmanship, 
after 3-4 months the project 
was still incomplete 

job not satisfactorily 
completed & contractor will 
not return 

another painter had to complet 
work and correct mistakes 

poor workmanship, did not 
pay concrete supplier 

poor job, but insisted on 
being paid in full, said he 
would re10, but never did 

only dug trench 

.. 



• 

-

• 

MAYOR ORAN K. GRA(;SON 

(OMMl~•.ltJNt It', 

HALI MOfll-LLI 

GEORGC E FRANKLIN 

PAUL J. CHRISTCN'SLN 

RON LURIE 

CITY ATTORNEY 

CARLE. LOVELL. JR. 

CIT V MAN AGE fl 

A.R.TRELEASE 

Mr. J. A. Brandom 
Brandom Construction 
1706 Santa Paula Drive 
Las Vegas, Nevada 891:07 

Dear Mr. Br~ndom: 

213 

CI TY of LAS VEGAS 

The Department of Building & Safety of the City of Las Vegas supports 
your idea to propose legislation affecting the building industry. We 
have been confronted by situations where a home owner takes out a 
building permit for home improvement and hires someone who i.olds him­
self out as a building contractor to do the work. We only have recourse 
against the permit holder for deficiencies in the construction. The 
corrections are not made and approval cannot be made for the construction 
since the so-called contractor has departed and the home owner doesn't 
understand construction. We believe the penalty for unlicensed building 
contractors should be increased to cause persons attempting such schemes 
to think twice before starting. 

Many times the home owner is misguided by over-zealous home improvement 
salesmen. The salesman leads the home owner to believe that anything is 
possible where in actuality the zoning_ laws and building code do not allow 
some things. 

We recommend these salesmen be licensed by the State after being tested to 
determine their fitness to guide the public. 

Very truly yours, 

11~-f? /£u>cr 
H. T. ELDER, Director 
Department Building & Safety 

4 00 E. STEWART AVENUE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89101 • (702) 386-6011 



-(> • , 
' . . ( (_ 

_,C.R. CLELAND Councilmen 
1 ~ Mayor DAN GRAY 

WENDELL G. WAITE 
JAMES K~WTRAND 

DAN MAirt!>NY 

CLAY LYNCH 
City Manager 

• City of North Las Vegas 

To Hhom It May Concern: 

2200 Civic Center Drive • P.O. Box 4036 
NORTII LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89030 

Telephone 649-5811 

January 16, 1975 

During the past five years there has been several instances where construction 
firms and salesmen duped the citizens-of florth Las Vegas, Hevada, by selling 
jobs to home owners within our local community for room additions, remodeling 
and/or repair work; in which the work done failed to·meet the standards for 
workmanship by not being in compliance with requirements for installation as 
specified by the Uniform Building Code, Uniform Plumbing Code and/or the 
National Electrical Code. Materials used on job being below the quality as 
called for on the contract, or below the minimum construction grade or rating 
as required in the Uniform Building Code. 

- Also,- a majority of such cases left the home owner responsible for 25% to 50% 
of work to be done, or responsible to install required appliances or fixtures 
as required by law before a final inspection could be approved. In a11 such 
cases, the home owner \·tas not aware of his responsibility, but the signed 
contract exonerated the construction firm or salesman in that the contract 
failed to include required finish work, painting and required floor covering, 
or said contract contained small print which left the home owner responsible 
and etc. 

• 

There have been cases, where salesmen have sold contracts to home owners where 
it was required that the home owner pay down 25% to 35% of the complete contract 
cost. After which having sold numerous jobs and receiving the required down 
payment, the construction firm or sa 1 esman v1as found to have not existed or 
closed business or moved on to unknown areas. In these cases, no work was ever 

· started and no materials were furnished for the proposed contract. In all such 
cases the victimized homeowners were out $500.00 to $1,000.00 or more. 

Examples are as follows: 

· 1. Citizen "A" \I/as contacted by a salesman who sold her a contract to 
enclose her existing carport for a cost of $7,000.00. I-le related 
that the enclosure would meet all requirements for nev, construction as 
required by FH/\ and local city ordinances. Both Citizr.n 11

/\
11 and the 

salesman signed the conlract which contain:.~d nothing to covc!r any 



I 

• 

-

• 

.r- •. Page z. ( 215 

requirements for a carport enclosure other than the exterior walls, 
doors and windows. The contract failed to include required electrical 
wiring for electrical service outlets, required floor covering or 
heating and cooling facilities for said enclosure. The construction 
firm as outlined in said contract proceeded and enclosed the carport 
with exterior walls, one entrance door and one openable window. But 
in so doing, the construction firm failed to obtain the required building 
permit and failed to call for required inspections. The then enclosed 
carport was later spotted by a Building Official of our local enity and 
upon checking it was found that to enclose a carport within the local 
area was prohibited by our local Zoning Ordinances in that by so doing 
the off-street parking area would be reduced to less than the minimum 
area as required by law. The salesman by now had left town. The con­
tractor gave back a portion of monies received which in this case was 
$5,800.00. Cititzen "A" was $1,200.00 stuck. 

2. Citizen "B" was sold a new water heater by a salesman employed in a 
local Department Store, which included installation of said water heater. 
The installer sent out by the Department Store was not licensed to do 
installation work of such fixtures. Consequently, the water heater was 
not properly installed which created a potential hazard, and failed to 
function in the manner for which designed and intended. Citizen 11 B11 

knew of no such thing and was unknowledgeable of how to contact the 
installer, nor did they know his name. They went back to the Department 
Store to complain. The Department Store said they were not responsible 
or liable for the actual installation and could do nothing about it. 
After investigating, we found the installer had left town and nothing 
in the sales contract implicated the Department Store as there was no 
liability on their part for the manner of installation. Citizen 11 811 

was responsible to hire a qualified and licensed serviceman to properly 
reinstall her water heater at a cost of approximately $100.00. This 
example case represents approximately 80% of sales by local Department 
Stores of fixture or appliance sales in which the sales contract in the 
majority of all sales includes installation. 

3. Citizen 11 C and Family" contacts a large and well known construction 
firm to construct a single family or residential home (majority of such 
cases involve a 3 or 4 bedroom house) on a lot \'Jhich they have a qualified 
accrued equity (75% or more). Citizen 11 C and Family" are short of funds 
or have no money to pay down on said contract as their only assets are 
the vested equity they have in their lot or lots or section of land. The 
salesman for the construction firm tells them they have enough equity in 
their real estate property (undeveloped land only) to meet the required 
dovm payment providing they wi 11 agree to do a 11 finish work. The contractor 
will then construct a 3 or 4 bedroom house complete with heating and 
refrigeration equipment, all interior walls complete except required 
finish work; and that said work will be completed within 30 to 60 days, 
etc. and ready for "Family C11 to move in. "Family C" signs the contract 
and the construction firm holds a mortgage for the home and real estate 
land at a high rate of interest (approximately 12% compounded annually) . 



.. 
, I'~ 

• 

-

<- ,, .. 

• 

Page 3 

RST:da 

( ( 
216 

Construction begins immediately and within the time period specified 
they have completed their contract and 11 Family e11 wants to move in . 
They can't because first the house has no floor covering, interior 
walls are not painted or finished, outside accessible storage area 
has not been provided for and no provisions have been made for off­
street parking. The last two items being major requirements by our 
local Zoning Ordinance to be completed before a final building or 
electrical inspection can be made. 

Previously, it had been a courtesy by our local enity to accept a 
letter of responsibility for "Family e11 (as exemplified) to complete 
all unfinished requirements within a specified time (30 to 60 days) 
which after having received said letter of responsibility, we could 
then issue a temporary tag for electrical service and certificate of 
occupancy. This policy has been forced to cease due to too many cases 
having occured in which 11 Family e11 (as exemplified) have been unable 
to fulfill their agreement to furnish or complete required items such 

_as off-street parking and outside accessible storage areas and in many 
cases not even being able to provide floor covering or do required 
~ainting of interior walls. Due to families as exemplified not having 
sufficient funds to complete said work due to the high payments they have 
to meet which prohibits them from affording the cost of materials needed 
and by not having time to put out to complete work required, as they're 
required to hold down two jobs to meet their required financial obligations 
to merely hold their family together. 

In many such cases two or three years have gone by where nothing has 
progressed to properly complete said homes. This in turn has created 
blithe and nuisances in our community and is a contributing factor to 
the devaluation of property and the increasing erruption of slum areas 
throughout the country. · 

We could go on and on citing case histories as it is an endless problem, 
and.unless there are enacted better laws through state and federal 
legislation to allow for better enforcement of existing laws; and new 
laws to clearer define and properly place all responsibilities to all 
responsible concerns or individuals within the Home Construction 
Industry, the problems are going to grow and become even \•JOrse. 

Yours tr_uly, 

~ ~ ~ l~~A~-:r-
·R ...... Y.Tate, Superintendent -- V 

Building & Safety Services 



• 

-

• 

OFFl<'E OF Bl;ILl>I~<; A;"\I) SAFETY 

CLAHK COlINTY COCHTllOt:SE AXNEX 
·100 L.\S \'l•:U.\S t:Ot'LE\'.\Hll :--Ol .. 1'11 

LAS\ I•:(:.\s. :\E\.,\IL\ 1--!llOI 

'l'ELl•:1'110:\ i,; 
;11-,1; .. 1011 

December 18, 1974 

Brandom Construction Company 
1706. Santa Paula Dri'\l'e 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107 

REFERENCE! Proposed Legislation 

Dear Mr. Brandom: 

2:17 

I have reviewed the proposed legislation, which you have s,.bmitted, 
and our comments are definitely in favor of this type of legislation. 

This Department has had many problems with unlicensed contractors 
and salesmen in the past and their procedures are very costly and 
dangerous to the general public. I also feel that this legislation 
will help all the Building Departments in controlling unlicensed 
·contractors and, so to speak, "con-man salesmen". 

I would not have any additions or changes to the proposed legislation 
at this time. You have our full support and if we can be of any 
further assistance, please feel free to call on us. 

JP/lg 



-

• 

CITY OF HENDERSON 
CITY HALL 243 WATER STREET 702/565-8921 

HENDERSON, NEY ADA 89015 

Gateway to Lake Mead /frsorts 

16 December 1974 

Mr. Joe Brandom, Chairman 
Horne Improvement Bill 
Business & Professional Code 
1706 Santa Paula Drive 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107 

Dear Mr. Brandom: 

In reading the suggested changes and additions to 
NRS 624, I am in complete agreement. There have 
always been problems in ou'r jurisdiction with 
unstable, quick-money home improvement contractors 
and salesmen. This problem see.ms more predominate 
in aluminum siding, room additions, patios, etc., 
especially the salesman who in many cases promise 
the customers a lot of extras that are not in the 
contract and, therefore, are not delivered. I 
also have had problems with unqualified installers; 
there seems to be a lack of contractor supervision. 

Any tightening of control on the fly-by-night, easy 
money contractors and the unlicensed high pressure 
salesmen would ease our enforcement problems. One 
suggestion that would help our enforcement would be 
all contractors to have their company name and address 
on all the trucks being used in the field. I will be 
happy to help in any way I can, because we do need 
more control and better consumer protection. 

, ..... _ 

Very truly yourw;P--~ .. ---r:;-··p--· . .-" 
/ .. t/~~. \±__i tJ'1tt/l.. .,0 _: 
< / . _,:)· ~~_;,.,. / ,, 

Pat Doh~rty~..,. S~pcrin.tenden .· 
Dept. of Building & Safety\ 

PD/sb 

218 



• 

-

• 

MIKE O'CALLAGHAN 
GOVERNOR 

MEMBERS 

WAYNE T, DONNELS, RENO 

M, D. HANCOCK, RENO 

ALBERT B. SOLARI, RENO 

LUTHER D. KUTCHER, LAS VEGAS 

R. L, MENDENHALL, LAS VEGAS 

ROBERT G. PARK, LAS VEGAS 

JOHN J, ROSE, ,LAS VEGAS 

STATE OF NEVADA 

STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD 

P. 0. BOX 7497, RENO, NEVADA 89502 
1760 INDUSTRIAL ROAD, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89102 

March 7, 1975 

Mrs. Kris Zohner 
Legislative Building 
Room 335 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

Dear Mrs. Zohner: 

I am providing you with a copy of the 
letter which I read to the Committee in 
the hearing held on SB-192 last evening, 
Thursday, Ma_rch 6, 1975 at 6:30 o'clock 
p.m. 

RLS:mc 
Encl: 

Very truly yours, 

Robert L. Stoker~ 
Secretary 

JOHN J. ROSE, CHAIRMAN 219 
M, D. HANCOCK, TREASURER 

ROBERT L. STOKER, SECRETARY 

THOMAS A. COOKE, BOARD ATTORNEY 



/' STATE OF NEVADA 

STATE CONTRACTORS BOARD-

220 
JOHN J. ROSI!!, CHAIRMAN 

• 

-

MIKE: o·cA!..LAGHA:--1 
) GOY!:P.NOR 

M£k9!.°~ 

WAYN!: -;. O<>NN::t.s. R!:NO 

M. 0. HASCOC!C. R::NO 

ALSl>lr. !!. SOU.RI. R::!'1O 

LI.IHE::t O. K!JT'!:M~R. US VS:GAS 

R. L. M;;;,-;::,.:>O-!ALL. LAS V£GAS 

RO!1£R'T ~. ?A.:U<. LAS V£GAS 

JONN .J. ?.CSE. LAS VEGAS 

P. 0. BOX 7497. RENO. NEVADA 89502 
. 1760 INDUSTn:;AL ROAD. LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89102 

March 5, 1975 

M. D. HANCOCK, TR£ASUR!R 

ROBERT L. STOKER, SECRET ... RY 

THOMAS A. COOKE. IIOARD ATTORNEY 

The ~nclosed copy of SB-l92 is being sent to you for your in­
formation. Personally,·! do not think that the proposed legis­
lation is good for four (4) reasons. 

The first is that it relates to salesmen improving mobile homes 
as well as residences. The Board's position has been that it 
can have no responsibility in this area, that mobile homes are 
personal property and do not properly come within the Board's 
jurisdiction. 

The second is that I fail to see how the licensing of salesmen 
will protect the public any better than the present course of 
licensing the contractors. Our experience has been that the 
salesmen are usually no better or no worse than the firm that 
employs them. 

The third reason is the requirement·that all corporate officers 
be licensed as salesmen. I do not see who or what will be 
benefited by causing all sixty corporate officers of Montgomery 
~·lard or Sears & Roebuck to be licensed. 

The fourth reason is that the legislation would grant the status 
of police officers to the inves.tigators which the Board has 
never wanted. This would seriously increase the personal lia­
bility of Board Members due to possible false arrest suits, 
suits for violation of civil liberties, and_the right to work. 

I have talked with Leo Hoschler, the Registrar for the California 
State Contractors Board regarding the efficacy of their legis­
lation in this regard. He stated that they only register home 
L:lprovement salesmen, that they conduct no investigation of 
the applicant's background, they do not require photographs, 

• that they ~erely ascertain by whom they are employed and re­
quire that the Office of the Registrar be informed of any 
change of employment. 



• 

-

• 

-2- March 5, 1975 

Your comments, suggestions, or recommendations are solicited 
regarding this legislation. 

RLS:mc 
Encl: 

Very truly yours, 

Robert L. Stoker, 
Secretary 

Original of above letter to Thomas A. Cooke, Esq., with 
xerox copies addressed in original to all Memb2rs of the 
Board and Chas. M. Thomas . 

221 

.. 



• 

-

\ : 

• 

222 
THE STATE iJEVELOr.:-mNT COMPA?\'Y 

The· State Development Company is a corporation organized under a specinl act 
of the State Legislature, providing for the formation and operation of such a 
company to promote and assist in the generation, development, and growth of· 
business and industry within the state. This assistance will primarily t.:ike 
the form of loans to, and equity investments in, business concerns which will 
contribute to economic growth and development. 

The company is an independent private corporation controlled by stockholciers 
representing business and financial interests and by members drawn from 
financial institutions such as banks, savings and loans, insurance comp&nies, 
and savings banks. Funds for loans and investments ~re derived from stock­
holders equity, borrowings from members, and loans from the Small Business 
Administratien, In fulfilling its mandate the state deve·lopment company m;i.y 
provide financial assistance to both small and large business, BUT, SR\ loans, 
on rqughiy a matching· fund basis, may only leve.rage- funds made available to 
small businesses. 

The company should be considered as primarily a vehicle and method for chan­
neling private funds into sound business proposals making a contribution to 
the economic development of the state. The two greatest benefits are probably:· 

1. The state-wide area of opera,tion and responsibility helps ,to assure 
that consideration will be given to tl1e needs of all sections of the state, 
not just to those areas generating the largest contributions to the fund~ng. 

2. Loans and investme
0

nts are made by the company 
equity and borrowing from members on a pro rata basis. 
the participants to spread the risk of each indivi,dual 
the s tocl<holdcrs and members, ' 

from stockholders' 
This system allows 

project among all 

Currently, 47 states have passed enabling legislation for a state development 
company. Of these, 32 states have incorporated companies and the other 15 
states are in various stages of organization.· The three states presently.with­
out even enabling legislation are Delaware, Nevada, and California. 

I do not feel that we can overemph.:i.size the value of the state development 
company as a means of concentrating available funding on projects of greatest 
economic value to the citizens of the state,· by creating a method and means 
of facilitating the injection of private monies into the Nevada · economic 
development process. 

oOo , .·· '. 

.. 

--.--~--- A---- ~-------
..... 



• 

-

• 

223 
A SUMMATION OF SENATE BILL 201 

INTRODUCED IN THE NEVADA LEGISL..i\TURE, lll• FEBRUARY 197 5 
' 

I ,· . , 

S.B_ •. 201---Neal, Blakemore, Bryan, Echols, Foote, Sheerin, and Walker, 

'' 

Feb. 14-. To Committee on Commerce and Labor. 

This bill authorizes the organization of industrinl de­
velopment corporations, and it provides that ·25 or more 
persons, a majority of whom n1'e residents of this state, 
may create an industrial corporation by filing articles 
of incorporation in the office of the Secretary of State 
in accordance 'tvith the provisions of this act. The Secre­
tary of State shall not approve articles of incorporation 
for a corporation organized under this act, until the total 
of at least six national banks, state banks, savings banks, 
industrial savings banks, federal savings and loan associa­
tions, domestic building and loan associations, or insur­
ance companies authorized to.do business within this state, 
or any combination thereof, have agreed in writing to be­
come members of the corporation. · The corporation shall 
have the.power to elect, appoint, and employ officers, 
agents, and employees; to borrow money from its members, 
and the Small Business Administration, and any other simi­
lar federal agency; to make loans; to purchase, receive, 
hold, lease, or otherwise acquire real and personal proper­
ty; to acquire the good will, business, rights, real and 
personal property, and other assets of any person, firm, 

. corporation, joint-stock company, association, or trust, 
and to assume obligations, debts, and liabilities; to ac­
quire, subscribe for, own, hold, sell, assign, transfer, 
mortgage, pledge, or otherwise dispose of the stock, shares, 
bonds, debentures, notes, or other securit~es; to mortgage, 
pledge, or otherwise encumber any property; and to cooperate 
with and avail itself of the facilities of the United States 
Department of Commerce, the Nevada Department of Economic 
Development, and any other similar state or federal govern~ 
mental agencies. The bill sets forth the powers of the 
officers, stocl<holders, and the members of the corporation. 
Lastly, it authorizes banks, savings and loan associations, 
and insurance companies to invest in shares and other securi­
ties of a state development corporation organized under the 
provisions of this act • 

,. ···•'! ,, .. - ..... 



( 

( 

( 

( 

S. B.192 

SENATE BILL NO. 192-SENATORS BRYAN, WILSON, 
RAGGIO, YOUNG, HILBRECHT AND GOJACK 

FEBRUARY 13, 1975 -
Referred to Committee on Commerce and Labor 

SUMMARY-Establishes procedure and licensing requirements for home 
improvement salesmen. Fiscal Note: No. (BDR 54-404) 

EXPLANATION-Matter in italics i, new; matter In brackets [ J is 
material to be omitted. 

AN ACT relating to home improvements; defining terms; establishing licensing 
requirements for salesmen; making certain acts unlawful; authorizing disci­
plinary action by the state contractors' board; providing for an injunction; 
giving certain employees limited peace officer status; and providing other 
matters properly relating thereto. 

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, 
do enact as follows: 

l SECTION 1. Chapter 624 of NRS is hereby amended by adding 
2 thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 to 16, inclusive, of this act. 
3 SEC. 2. As used in sections 3 to 16, inclusive, of this act, the words 
4 and terms defined in sections 3 to 6, inclusive, of this act, have the mean-
5 ings ascribed to them in such sections, unless the context otherwise 
6 requires. 
7 SEC. 3. "Home improvement" means the repairing, remodeling, 
8 altering, converting, modernizing or adding to any residental property 
9 or to any mobile home, and includes but is not limited to the construction, 

10 erection, replacement or improvement of driveways, swimming pools, 
11 terraces, patios, landscapes, fences, porches, garages, fallout shelters, 
12 basements or other improvements to the structure, mobile home or land. 
13 SEC. 4. "Home improvement contract" means an agreement, whether 
14 oral, written or contained in one or more documents, between a home 
15 improvement contractor and a landowner or a mobile home owner for a 
16 home improvement and includes all services, materials and labor to be 
17 furnished and perf armed. 
18 SEC. 5. "Home improvement contractor" means a contractor licensed 
19 under this chapter who is engaged in the business of home improvement 
20 either full time or part time. • 
21 SEC. 6. "Home improvement salesman" means a person employed by 
22 a home improvement contractor to solicit, sell, negotiate or execute home 
23 improvement contracts. 




